
 MINUTES
August 8, 2016

Historic Preservation Commission
City of Batavia

Please NOTE: These minutes are not a word-for-word transcription of the statements made at the 
meeting, nor intended to be a comprehensive review of all discussions. They are intended to make an 
official record of the actions taken by the Committee/City Council, and to include some description of 
discussion points as understood by the minute-taker. They may not reference some of the individual 
attendee’s comments, nor the complete comments if referenced.

1. Meeting Called to Order
Chair Bus called the meeting to order at 5:31pm.

2. Roll Call

Members Present: Chair Bus; Vice-Chair Hagemann; Commissioners Sherer, Roller and
Sullivan (entered at 5:50pm)

Members Absent: None

Also Present: Jeff Albertson, Building Commissioner; Scott Buening, Director of
Community Development; Byron Ritchason, Wastewater Division
Superintendent; and Jennifer Austin-Smith, Recording Secretary

3. Items to be Removed, Added or Changed
There were no items to be removed, added or changed.

4. Approval of Minutes: July 11, 2016 and July 25, 2016

Motion: To approve the minutes from July 11, 2016 and July 25, 2016
Maker: Hagemann
Second: Sherer
Voice Vote: 4 Ayes, 0 Nays, 1 Absent

Motion carried.

5. Matters From the Public (for items not on the agenda)
Chair Bus asked if there were matters from the public for items not on the agenda. There were
none.

6. COA Review Continuation: 111, 133 East Wilson Street and 20 North River Street -
Demolition (City of Batavia, applicant)

Bus asked if there are any updates on the types of bricks. David Patzelt, Shodeen, stated that they
obtained samples for matches but have not chosen which matches the current brick. It is still
their attempt to reuse the bricks from the church building as much as possible. Buening stated
that the redevelopment agreement is still being worked on. The redevelopment agreement should
be brought to the Committee on the August 23 and at City Council the day after Labor Day. The
delay is due to obtaining exhibits. Bus asked about the parcels to be obtained. Buening stated that
they are still working on one parcel and one of the parcels will be brought to Committee of the



Historic Preservation Commission
August 8, 2016
Page 2

Whole for approval. Sherer asked when the parking garage would be tore down. Buening stated
that they would like to tear it down as late as possible and the City is trying to obtain additional
temporary parking prior to the demolition. Buening commented that a public works employee’s
son would also like to memorialize the Baptist Church because his parents were married in that
building. 

Motion: To approve the COA for demolition as presented
Maker: Hagemann
Second: Sherer

Discussion was made on the motion. Hagemann stated that it is great to see a developer who was
willing to make the efforts to memorialize this building. He thanked Shodeen for their efforts.
David Patzelt stated that they hope that after the redevelopment agreement is approved they will
be back in front of the Commission in thirty days with proposed plans. Sherer stated that she
appreciates the congeniality between the Commission and Dave Patzelt, representing Shodeen
Construction, and City staff. This has been the first time she has done a demolition of a
significant structure while she has been on the Commission and it is not an easy thing to do.
Roller stated that she is happy that they are saving the finial and she looks forward to seeing
what they come up with. Bus stated that this is the biggest demolition project since he has been
on the Commission. We, as a Commission, did our job in terms of pursuing the issue, doing the
follow up site visit, working with the developer and staff, asking a lot of questions, and
accomplishing something that would reflect the bell tower of the past into the future of the City
of Batavia. 

Roll Call Vote: Aye:  Hagemann, Sherer, Roller, Sullivan, Bus
Nay:  None
5-0 Vote, 0 Absent, Motion carried.

7. COA Review: 400 South Shumway-Demolition & New Construction (Trotter &
Associates, applicant)

Bus commented that if this is a city-owned property than the City should be the applicant for
demolition. 

Byron Ritchason stated that this has to go through the development review process and to the
entire City Council. This COA review is for the approval of the elevations for the new building
and demolition of the old building. Albertson stated that the building to be demolished was never
classified but was in the district. If he were to suggest a classification he would say non-
contributing. Bus asked if the new building would help with odor management. Ruth stated that
there would be odor management. Bus stated that is a good thing for downtown.

*Sullivan entered at 5:50pm

Jerry Ruth, Trotter and Associates, presented a PowerPoint presentation that included the
following information:

 Project history

 Project description



Historic Preservation Commission
August 8, 2016
Page 3

o Existing site conditions
o Improved site conditions

 Exterior Aesthetics
o Rendering of the proposed structure
o North elevation
o Cast stone trim
o Primarily brick
o Masonry screen wall
o Current architectural
o Architectural design concepts

 Lighting (LED)

 Site improvements
o Bike path rerouted to be shared with Flinn Street

Bus stated that the City and the consultant should be congratulated for a very nice design.

Motion: To approve the COA as presented
Maker: Sullivan
Second: Roller
Roll Call Vote: Aye:  Hagemann, Sherer, Roller, Sullivan, Bus

Nay:  None
5-0 Vote, 0 Absent, All in favor. Motion carried.

8. Updates:
1. 7 East Wilson Street – Historic Inspection
2. Anderson Block Building – Masonry Maintenance
3. Significant Historic Building Inspection Program
4. 10/12 North River Street – Historic Inspection
5. 227 West Wilson Street – Historic Inspection
6. 109 South Batavia Avenue – Historic Inspection
7. 8 North River Street – Historic Inspection
8. 16 East Wilson Street – Historic Inspection

There were no updates at this time.

9. Other Business
Buening read a statement to the Committee for the record:

“My name is Clayton LeKander and I am a thirteen year old who has lived in Batavia all my life,
so have my parents and grandparents. Most all of the family that I know attended services at the
Batavia First Baptist Church until its closing. My parents met in that church and were married
there 99 years after the building was constructed. In a way, the church is like a third parent to
me, and has played a very important role in my life, but now its future is in question. Despite the
church having closed down, I can not imagine my life without it. I feel that when the City bought
the historic building, it was their responsibility to maintain it as the owners. I mean this with all
possible respect, but I believe the City and those in charge need to take responsibility for what



Historic Preservation Commission
August 8, 2016
Page 4

has happened over the last decade, and restore this important, historical building. Think of all the
services, weddings, and baptisms that have taken place in that church. For many people, those
were the happiest days of their lives. Recently, I was in conversation with a friend who asked
me, ‘why does it matter so much to you?’ I found a quote by Elie Wiesel that I believe sums it up
perfectly.  ‘Without memory, there would be no culture. Without memory, there would be no
civilization, no society, no future.’ So I ask you, are these memories not worth saving?”

Roller asked if staff needed anything else from the Committee regarding the updated guidelines.
Albertson stated that the ordinance is ready but he asked for the Commission to give him a write-
up or synopsis regarding justifications for the changes and highlighting any major changes.
Hagemann stated that he would supply that information to staff. 

Bus stated that he would not be able to attend the August 22, 2016 HPC meeting. All others
stated that they would be able to attend, thus making a quorum. Albertson noted that he would
not be at that meeting as well but a member of City staff would be there. Currently, there is one
COA on the agenda for that meeting. Dunkin Donuts may be added to that agenda as well.

Hagemann asked if there was going to be a replacement to fill the empty seat on the HPC.
Buening and Albertson stated that they asked the Mayor but have not received an answer as of
yet. Bus stated that if you are aware of someone who has interest in this to please take their
information to the staff. 

10. Adjournment
There being no other business to discuss, Chair Bus asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting at
6:05pm; Made by Sherer; Seconded by Hagemann. Motion carried.

Minutes respectfully submitted by Jennifer Austin-Smith


